

JHP

SEALED

FILED

FEB 03 2014

Phil Lombardi, Clerk
U.S. DISTRICT COURT

**IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA**

14 CR 018 JHP

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Plaintiff,

v.

KENNETH R. MORAIN,

Defendant.

Case No. _____

FILED UNDER SEAL

INDICTMENT

[COUNTS 1 through 14: 18 U.S.C. §§

2252(a)(2) and 2252(b)(1) –

Distribution and Attempted

Distribution of Child Pornography;

COUNT 15: 18 U.S.C. §§ 2252(a)(2)

and 2252(b)(1) – Receipt and Attempt

to Receive Child Pornography;

COUNT 16: 18 U.S.C. §§ 2252(a)(4)(B)

and 2252(b)(2) - Possession and

Attempted Possession of Child

Pornography]

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES:

COUNTS ONE THROUGH FOURTEEN

[18 U.S.C. §§ 2252(a)(2) and 2252(b)(1)]

On or about the dates below, in the Northern District of Oklahoma, and elsewhere, the defendant, **KENNETH R. MORAIN**, knowingly distributed, and attempted to distribute, visual depictions identified below of minors engaging in sexually explicit conduct, using any means and facilities of interstate and foreign commerce and which visual depictions had been mailed, shipped, and transported in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce. These depictions contained materials which had been so mailed and shipped and transported by any means, including by computer, and knowingly reproduced any such visual depiction for distribution using any means and facility of interstate and foreign commerce and in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce.

The production of such depictions involved the use of minors engaging in sexually explicit conduct and the visual depictions were of such conduct, to wit:.

COUNT	DATE DISTRIBUTED	FILES CONTAINING CHILD PORNOGRAPHY
ONE	July 30, 2013	5 images
TWO	August 5, 2013	10 images
THREE	August 12, 2013	5 images
FOUR	August 16, 2013	3 videos and 1 image
FIVE	August 20, 2013	3 images
SIX	August 30, 2013	3 images and 1 video
SEVEN	September 5, 2013	2 images
EIGHT	September 6, 2013	4 images and 5 videos
NINE	September 17, 2013	5 images and 1 video
TEN	September 23, 2013	5 images
ELEVEN	October 4, 2013	2 videos
TWELVE	October 28, 2013	4 videos and 1 image
THIRTEEN	November 6, 2013	2 videos
FOURTEEN	November 13, 2013	2 videos

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2252(a)(2) and 2252(b)(1).

COUNT FIFTEEN
[18 U.S.C. §§ 2252(a)(2) and 2252(b)(1)]

On or about December 4, 2013, in the Northern District of Oklahoma, and elsewhere, the defendant, **KENNETH R. MORAIN**, knowingly received and attempted to receive visual depictions described below of minors engaging in sexually explicit conduct to wit:

- a. Thai gracel melissa pthc_hmm gracel series_melissa 7_03 fuck my pussy_58seg.mpg;
- b. !new! webcam(pthc)(ptsc) a sdpa 9yr suzi orgasm(3).avi; and
- c. _Arestra_(((kingpass))) pthc_10yrs Russian girl_long petting (16min41sec).avi,

using any means and facilities of interstate and foreign commerce and which visual depictions had been mailed, shipped, and transported in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce. These depictions contained materials which had been so mailed and shipped and transported by any means, including by computer, and knowingly reproduced any such visual depiction for distribution using any means and facility of interstate and foreign commerce and in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce. The production of such depictions involved the use of minors engaging in sexually explicit conduct and the visual depictions were of such conduct.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2252(a)(2) and 2252(b)(1).

COUNT SIXTEEN
[18 U.S.C. §§ 2252(a)(4)(B) and 2252(b)(2)]

On or about December 4, 2013, in the Northern District of Oklahoma, the defendant, **KENNETH R. MORAIN**, knowingly possessed and attempted to possess and knowingly accessed with intent to view visual depictions of minors who had not attained 12 years of age engaging in sexually explicit conduct in one or more graphic image files and video files. The production of the visual depictions involved the use of minors who had not attained 12 years of age engaging in sexually explicit conduct. The visual depictions had been mailed, and had been shipped and transported in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce, and had been shipped and transported using means and facilities of interstate and foreign commerce, and were produced using materials which had been so mailed and shipped and transported by any means including by computer.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2252(a)(4)(B) and 2252(b)(2).

DANNY C. WILLIAMS, SR.
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY



JEFFREY A. GAILLANT
Assistant United States Attorney

A TRUE BILL

/s/ Grand Jury Foreperson

Grand Jury Foreperson